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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

PRAGMATUS TELECOM, LLC,
Civil Action No. 14-cv-359-RGA
Plaintiff,
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
V.
FILED IN 14-cv-26-RGA
ASPECT SOFTWARE, INC.

Defendant.

SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Plaintiff Pragmatus Telecom, LLC (“Pragmatus”) complains and alleges as
follows against Defendant Aspect Software, Inc. (“Aspect Software”):

THE PARTIES

1. Pragmatus is a limited liability company organized and existing under the
laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia with its principal place of business at 601 North
King Street, Alexandria, Virginia 22314.

2. Pragmatus is informed and believes that Aspect Software is a Delaware
Corporation with its principal place of business located at 2325 East Camelback Road
(suite 700), Phoenix, Arizona 85016.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This is an action for patent infringement arising under the patent laws of
the United States, United States Code, 35 U.S.C. § 271 et seq. This Court has subject

matter jurisdiction over this action under Title 28 United States Code, 8§ 1331 and 1338.
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4. Pragmatus is informed and believes that this Court has personal
jurisdiction over Aspect Software because Aspect Software has committed, and continues
to commit, acts of infringement in Delaware.

5. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. 88 1391 and 1400 because Aspect
Software has committed acts of infringement in this district.

THE PATENTS-IN-SUIT

6. On October 30, 2001, the United States Patent and Trademark Office
(“USPTO”) duly and legally issued United States Patent No. 6,311,231 (“the ’231
Patent”), entitled “Method and System for Coordinating Data and VVoice Communications
Via Customer Contract Channel Changing System Using Voice Over IP.” Pragmatus
holds all right, title, and interest in and to the *231 Patent. A true and correct copy of the
’231 Patent is attached as Exhibit A.

7. On December 23, 2003, the USPTO duly and legally issued United States
Patent No. 6,668,286 (“the *286 Patent”), entitled “Method and System for Coordinating
Data and Voice Communications Via Customer Contact Channel Changing System Over
IP.” Pragmatus holds all right, title and interest in and to the 286 Patent. A true and
correct copy of the 286 Patent is attached as Exhibit B.

8. On January 2, 2007, the USPTO duly and legally issued United States
Patent No. 7,159,043 (“the *043 Patent”), entitled “Method and System for Coordinating
Data and Voice Communications Via Contact Channel Changing System.” Pragmatus
holds all right, title and interest in and to the 043 Patent. A true and correct copy of the

043 Patent is attached as Exhibit C.
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9. On May 7, 2013, the USPTO duly and legally issued United States Patent
No. 8,438,314 (“the *314 Patent”), entitled “Method and System for Coordinating Data
and Voice Communications Via Customer Contact Channel Changing System.”
Pragmatus holds all right, title and interest in and to the *314 Patent. A true and correct
copy of the *314 Patent is attached as Exhibit D.

COUNT 1
(INFRINGEMENT OF THE °231 PATENT)

10. Pragmatus incorporates by reference herein the averments set forth in
paragraphs 1 through 9 above.

11. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has directly infringed and continues to directly infringe, literally and/or under
the doctrine of equivalents, at least claim 9 of the *231 Patent by making, using, selling,
offering for sale and providing contact center, voice and live chat services and systems
over the Internet, including Aspect Software’s Call Center products, services and related
elements of Aspect’s Unified IP, Communications and Collaboration, Social Customer
Care, Inbound Automatic Call Distribution (ACD), Self Service Voice Portal / IVR,
Mutlichannel Contact / Email / Web Chat, and/or Zipwire products and services.

12. Exemplary evidence of Aspect Software’s infringement is provided below.

13. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software describes its call center software and systems as built on Unified IP and Zipwire

platforms. http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-software/. Aspect Software

touts the primary capability of its Call Center Software as providing “omni-channel

connections” that “[flrom phone calls, to text messages, to emails, to Tweets, [deliver
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users with] a great experience.” http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-

software/. In addition to calling Aspect Software directly and/or requesting a voice
contact subsequent to submission of a form, Aspect call center product provides live chat,
through a series of screen shots demonstrating Aspect Software’s infringement of each of

the patents-in-suit. Aspect Software itself calls the accused service/system “live chat” —

“Welcome to Our Live Chat.”

L= Coneact Center Software & x

€« c www.aspect.com/products-and-services/contact-center-software/

m\bﬂ'_ ! Products & Services Solutions Customer Resources Pariners Company Caonnect with Aspect English/US < Q i,

Home » Products and Services » Contact Center Share | Print | Chat

SCHEDULE A DEMO

Chris Koziol talks about
delivering remarkable
customer experiences.

Call Center Software

“Aspect has a complete view of everything I'm trying to implement. It’s a complete, consolidated :
contact center platform. . it's a single person | cantinue to build a relatiorship with that m Requine Fied
understands my business needs, und ds the system functionality, and can tie it together.”

- Glen Thies, Director, Central Pharmacy Services, CVS/Pharmacy
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c www.aspect.com/products-and-services/contact-center-software/

Products & Services Solutions

aspect’,

=) Contact Center Software & x

Customer Resources

Partners Company Connect with Aspect

Chat with an Aspect Sales representative.

This chat service puts you in touch with an Aspect Sales
representative who can answer your questions abo
products, senvdces snd next peneration custome:

solutions.

Support inquiries: Technical assistance for our products is
available through our al or, if you
prefer to speak with someone live, here |s the line to the

listof

Careers inquiries: F

rrnation about Aspect job
openings. please vsit our %

< www.aspect.com/products-and-services/contact-center-software/

Products & Services Solutions.

Customer Resources

Partners

Company Connect with Aspect
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216.6.208.103 /phplive/phplive.php?d=0&btn=13373497209&cnpage=hphp%.

Home » Products and Services » Contact C Share | Print | Chat
SCHEDULE A DEMO
Welcome to our Live Chat
Please complete the fiedds below and click Start Chat.
If all topic areas are showing as offine, p ease contact us via phone
*Topic
Cantact Center Solutions - Online B
*Name *Emall
Marc Belloli mbelloli@feinday.com |
"Question
How do | get your live chat services for my
business?
. o Automatically email the chat transenpt when Ty o
session ends.
Call Ce e

“Aspect h

understands my business needs,

T ds the system functit

- Glen Thies, Director, Central Pharmacy Services, CVS/Pharmacy

lity. and can tie it together.”

964
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Contact Center Software | x

€ c www.aspect.com/products-and-services/contact-center-software/
w Products & Services Solutions Customer Resources Pariners Company Connect with Aspect <: Q
216.6.208.103 /phplive /phplive_.php?submit& 1402947705
Home 3 Products and Services > Contact Cay A ——— —— Share | Print | Chat
How do | get your live chal services for my business?
Luls has joined the chat SCHEDULE A DEMO
Luis {12:45:30) : Hi, Thanks for contacting Aspect Software Solutions. My name is Luis. How can | help
you?
=] v
Submit

lity. and can tie it together.”
- Glen Thies, Director, Central Pharmacy Services, CVS/Pharmacy

understands my business needs, undy ds the system functic

14. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
further states “web based contact management capabilities of Aspect Unified IP makes it
easy to provide your customers with a broad ranges of ways to contact your agents,
including voice, email, web chat, IM, SMS and social channels.”

http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-software/web-contact-management/. As

such, Aspect’s servers operate to receive data from customers, for example, indicating a
contact channel for the customers with an IP address or telephone contact number.

http://www.aspect.com/company/Contact-Us/.

15. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software also has and continues to indirectly infringe at least claim 9 of the *231 Patent

by inducing others to infringe or contributing to the infringement of others, including
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customers of its contact center, voice and live chat services and systems in this judicial
district and elsewhere in the United States.

16. Specifically, Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that
Aspect Software has actively induced and continues to induce the infringement of at least
claim 9 of the ’231 Patent at least by actively inducing third party customers — like
Trupanion and customers that receive similar contact center, voice and live chat services
— in the United States and this District to infringe.

17. For example, Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges,
that per Aspect Software’s website and customer case studies, Aspect Software provided
Trupanion contact center, voice and live chat technology and services. Aspect touts
Trupanion’s statement that “[w]e wanted a tool that would allow us to IM chat, email,
Facetime, be on the phone, all of those things. Video from Aspect Case Study for

Trupanion, at 1:38-1:144 (http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-1). “Aspect

was the company that met all of our needs which was every single contact channel in one

platform, Video from Aspect Case Study for Trupanion, at 2:06-2:16

(http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-1). Aspect further touts Trupanion’s

statement that “[a]s a small IT department we didn’t have to worry about the servers, the
storage, the application, Aspect handled all of that for us.” Video from Aspect Case

Study for Trupanion, at 2:20-2:3516 (http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-

1).
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Aspect Case Study: Trupanion

18.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Trupanion’s
website displayed live chat and voice services and technology at the top of the splash

page (www.trupanion.com) where the customer selected “Chat Now” or “Call Us.” The

foregoing is depicted below:
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” Activate Certificate | Continue Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In
t r » - c] I O Choose your reglon: Online Support
Wpanion s TR canus -

Medical insurance for your pet. Espafiol Underwritien by American Pet Insurance Company

PET INSURANCE WHY TRUPANION PET CARE POLICYHOLDERS

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Francisco

SAN FRANC'SCO' ::::alth Insurance Quote

here's another way to show love Pet Type:

=) Dog Cat
to your d°g or ca' Gender: *) Male Female
Breed: Pioaso Select Breed
Pet Age: Ploase Select Age

Zip Code:
Email:

We wil email your quote to you and respact yaur privacy.

START YOUR QUOTE »

19.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that when a
customer indicated he/she would like to use this technology by clicking on the “Chat
Now” portion of Trupanion’s webpage, the customer was then asked to enter their name,

email and the department of Trupanion they would like to chat with:

trupanion.com/chat .7 ue Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In

t ru p an | | | trupanion.com/chat % CallUs ~

Medical insurance for tru panion‘ n by American Pet Insurance Company

PET INSURANCE i m

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Frang

Trupanion Online Support g"f*‘"ﬁ' ce Quote
SAN FRAN (Riinal B a
here's another way ik g |
to your dog or cat [T B R\? P &
O maml
Department: Select Deparimen: & :_f ll, | \. \‘\ "-lH
-

- I‘I' \ N
o > . oy
£ _ ' |
Chat Now S = 4

1 your privacy.

Pet Insurance Resources TTpetinsurance can help protectyour beloved dog

Trupanion Policy Overview or Cat
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20.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that once the
customer provided this information and clicks on “Chat Now,” the customer entered a
live chat with Trupanion where the customer can — among other things — have questions
answered or apply for health insurance in real time via the live chat technology and

services provided by Aspect Software:

g UnifiediP Chat e Coverage | Enter Proma Code | Sign in
t Fi.J) lL,{ (1171 |1 & nups://205.140.200.204/CCPROChat /CPChatMain jsp?ChatSrvr=10.254.. m Gl e
Medical insurance fory Hello! Thank you for ing Trupanion, wa are ing you to a pet lover ready to 11 by American Pot Insurance Company
help!
| rmnoce v [RTRP— . =3
Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Frant
SAN FRAN e
here's another way
to your dog or cat b
m R yow privacy
Fetl R it Petinsurance can help protectyour beloved dog

21.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that upon
completion of the live chat — for example, when the customer clicks on “End Chat” — the
transcript of the chat remains available for the customer to review and the customer was

informed that Trupanion’s live chat technology is “Powered by Aspect Software”:

-10-
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§ Amthimim Pl mie | Pe=tin e Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In
Session Script

t rl‘_{,’ b g i Online Support
e’ W 1 ) 2 https://205.140.200.204/CCPROChat/CPChatMain.jsp?ChatSrvr=10.254.... m CallUs ~

Medical insurance for

e — p— Bn by American Pet Insurance Company
reJIDANiol
m Medical insurance for your pet J

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Frar

Hello! Thank you for contacting Trupanion, we are connecting you to a pet lover ready to

help! ice Quote
SA N F RA N Hi,‘:his is Laura. How can | help you today?

0 You 7:39:33 AM
here b Cll"loﬂ'ler WGY = | would like pet insurance, please.
Laura 74012 AM

to your dog or cat [y e
Laura T7:40:18 AM

ﬁ = Could | get your last name?
b

L™
{ _._”

Powornd by Aspact Softwars
Patinsurines Resouces roTmouraneo-Gan: neppprercweywll beloved dog

Trunanion Policy Overview ~r ~ak

The foregoing demonstrates Trupanion’s infringement of the *231 patent induced by
Aspect Software.

22.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software knew or should have known that its conduct and its continued provision of this
technology and instructions and assistance with respect to this technology would induce
others — like Trupanion and customers that receive similar contact center, voice and live
chat services — to use its software and/or hardware for providing contact center, voice and
live chat services in a manner than infringes the 231 Patent. Pragmatus is informed and
believes, and thereon alleges, that these third parties — like Trupanion — have infringed at
least claim 9 of the *231 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. 8 271(a) by using the infringing
system/service (“Direct Infringers”). Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon
alleges, that Aspect Software through at least the sale and/or license of contact center,
voice and live chat software and hardware and related services as well as support and

instructions to provides related to the software and hardware and related services actively

-11-
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induced and continues to induce its customers to infringe at least claim 9 of the 231
Patent.

23. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at least since
it knew of the 231 Patent, Aspect Software specifically intended to induce the Direct
Infringers to use its contact center, voice and live chat software in a manner that directly
infringes at least claim 9 of the 231 Patent because, among other things, it instructs the
Direct Infringers on the use of its contact center, voice and live chat products to use the
products in an infringing manner.

24, Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that as a
proximate result of Aspect Software’s inducement, the Direct Infringers directly
infringed and continue to directly infringe at least claim 9 of the 231 Patent at least by
using Aspect Software’s contact center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or
related services in connection with the Internet.

25. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at least since
Aspect Software knew of the *231 Patent, Aspect Software knew or was willfully blind to
knowing that the Direct Infringers were using Aspect Software’s contact center, voice
and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services in connection with the Internet
in a way that directly infringes at least claim 9 of the 231 Patent as a result of its
inducement of infringement.

26. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has contributorily infringed and continues to contributorily infringe at least
claim 9 of the ’231 Patent by providing, selling or offering to sell within the United

States infringing software, systems and services to third party customers like Trupanion

-12-
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that constitute a material part of the claimed invention and are not staple articles of
commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use. Pragmatus is informed and
believes, and thereon alleges, that these third parties have infringed and will continue
infringe the *231 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by using the infringing contact
center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services (“Direct
Infringers™).

27. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software provides a component of the patented machine and/or material or apparatus for
practicing a patented process to the Direct Infringers of at least claim 9 of the *231 patent
by providing its contact center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or services in
conjunction with instructions to Direct Infringers. For example, as set forth above,
Aspect Software provides material parts of the invention that have no substantial non-
infringing use other than to infringe the *231 patent such as the software that “powers”
the contact center, voice and live chat technology that Aspect Software provides to its
customers like Trupanion as set forth in detail above.

28. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has received written notice of its infringement from Pragmatus in at least a
letter dated March 14, 2014 from counsel for Pragmatus to Stephen Beaver, Senior Vice
President & General Counsel at Aspect Software. The letter explains that Aspect
Software is infringing the ’231 patent, the *286 patent, the 043 patent and the 314
patent. The letter further explains that Aspect Software is infringing by offering its own
live chat services as well as inducing and contributing to the infringement of its

customers by providing software and/or hardware for customers to use the accused

-13-
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services. Aspect Software also has written notice of its infringement by virtue of the
filing and service of the Complaint.

29. Pragmatus is informed and believes that at least as a result of the
foregoing notice and the filing and service of the Complaint, Aspect Software has
knowledge of its infringement of the *231 Patent.

30. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that the contact
center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services that Aspect
Software provides to its customers constitute a material part of the invention of the ’231
patent at least because the invention cannot be practiced without these components as set
forth above.

31. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that the contact
center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services that Aspect
Software provides to its customers are not staple articles of commerce, and have no
substantial non-infringing uses, at least for the reason that the accused aspects of Aspect
Software’s contact center, voice and live chat products are designed to only substantially
perform in a manner that infringes as set forth above.

32. Pragmatus has suffered damages as a result of Aspect Software's
infringement of the *231 Patent in an amount to be proven at trial.

COUNT 11
(INFRINGEMENT OF THE ’286 PATENT)
33. Pragmatus incorporates by reference herein the averments set forth in

paragraphs 1 through 9 above.

-14-
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34. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has directly infringed and continues to directly infringe, literally and/or under
the doctrine of equivalents, at least claim 18 of the *286 Patent by making, using, selling,
offering for sale and providing contact center, voice and live chat services and systems
over the Internet, including Aspect’s Call Center products, services and related elements
of Aspect’s Unified IP, Communications and Collaboration, Social Customer Care,
Inbound Automatic Call Distribution (ACD), Self Service Voice Portal / IVR,
Mutlichannel Contact / Email / Web Chat, and/or Zipwire products and services.

35. Exemplary evidence of Aspect’s infringement is provided below.

36. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect

describes its call center software and systems as built on Unified IP and Zipwire

platforms. http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-software/. Aspect touts the
primary capability of its Call Center Software as providing “omni-channel connections”
that “[flrom phone calls, to text messages, to emails, to Tweets, [deliver users with] a

great experience.” http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-software/. In addition

to calling Aspect directly and/or requesting a voice contact subsequent to submission of a
form, Aspect call center product provides live chat, through a series of screen shots
demonstrating Aspect Software’s infringement of each of the patents-in-suit. Aspect
Software itself calls the accused service/system “live chat” — “Welcome to Our Live

Chat.”

-15-
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www.aspect.com/products-and-services/contact-center-software/

m =) Products & Services Solutions Customer Resources. Pariners Company

Home » Products and Services » Contact Center

«  Call Center Software

“Aspect has a complete view of everything I'm trying to impl Itsa lete, ¢ {i

Connect with Aspect

Page 16 of 49 PagelD #: 975

Share | Print | Chat

SCHEDULE A DEMO

Chiris Koziol talks about
delivering remarkable
customer experiences.

contact center platform. . it’s a single persan | continue to build a relationship with that
understands my business needs, und fs the system functit

- Glen Thies, Director, Central Pharmacy Services, CVS/Pharmacy

(=] Contact Center Software ¢ =

(e c

aspect!

www.aspect.com/products-and-services/contact-center-software/

Products & Services Solutions Customer Resources Partners Company Connect with Aspect

Chat with an Aspect Sales representative.

This chat serice puts you in touch with an Aspect Sales
representative who can answer your questions about our
products, services ind next peneration customer cor

solutions

Support inguiries: Technical assistance for cur products is
available through cur o if you
prefer to speak with someone live, here |s the line to the

list of su

Careers inquiries: For information about Aspect job
openings. please vsit our %

-16-

lity, and can tie it together.”
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[=] Contact Center Software © «

7 c www.aspect.com/products-and-services/contact-center-software/ o

aqnd:cg Products & Services  Solutions  CustomerResources  Parners  Company  Connect with Aspect English/US < Q

Welcome to our Live Chat

216.6.208.103 /phplive/phplive.php?d=0&btn=1337397209&cnpage=hphpX...
Share | Print | Chat

m El SCHEDULE ADEMO

Home » Products and Services » Contact C

First Name"
Welcome to our Live Chat Last Name*
Please complete the fiedds below and click Start Chat.
If all topic areas are showing as offline, pease contact us via phone or small. Ermail*
*Topic

Contact Center Sodutions - Online s

Work Phone*
“Name “Emall
Marc Belloli mbelloli@feinday.com

Company Name™
“Question
How do | get your live chat services for my -
business? Jeb Tithe

o Automatically email the chat ranseripl when Country™ »

4  session ends.

Inbound Automatic Call call c‘
Distribution [ACD) m

Systems l I p

How Can We Halp You?

Self Service Vioice Portal et A
/ IVR Systems

e o SER ' . ny,andm

L

Multi-channel Contact / - Glen Thies, Director, Central P} cy Services, CVS/Ph y

Ernail / Web Chat

et

(=] Contact Center Software & x

L c www.aspect.com/ products-and-services /contact-center-software/ W

mm Products & Services  Solutions  Customer Resources Fariners Company  Connect with Aspect English/US < Q

Welcome to our Live Chat

216.6.208.103 /phplive/phplive_ php?submit&1402947705

Home 3 Products and Services » Contact © Share | Print | Chat

How do | get your live chat services for my business?

Luils has joined the chat. SCHEDULE A DEMO
Luls {12:45:30) : Hi, Thanks for contacting Aspect Software Solutions. My name is Luis. How can | halp >
you? First Name'

Last Name"

Ernail*

Work Phone”

Company Name™

Job Title*

Inbound Automatic Call call c|

Distribution [ACD)
Systems
l I -

e iﬁ
Self Service Voice Portal - i red Field
/ IVR Systems m o R e : 3 i - m o :
understands my business needs, understands the system functionality, and can tie it together.
MISt Channe) Sonma - Glen Thies, Director, Central Pharmacy Services, €VS/Pharmacy

Email / Web Chat

» B poo100] Lus Country* v

Submit How Can We Halp You?

Unified

37.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect

further states “web based contact management capabilities of Aspect Unified IP makes it

-17-
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easy to provide your customers with a broad ranges of ways to contact your agents,
including voice, email, web chatt IM, SMS and social channels.”

http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-software/web-contact-management/. As

such, Aspect’s servers operate to receive data from customers, for example, indicating a
contact channel for the customers with an IP address or telephone contact number.

http://www.aspect.com/company/Contact-Us/.

38. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software also has and continues to indirectly infringe at least claim 18 of the *286 Patent
by inducing others to infringe or contributing to the infringement of others, including
customers of its contact center, voice and live chat services and systems in this judicial
district and elsewhere in the United States.

39. Specifically, Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that
Aspect Software has actively induced and continues to induce the infringement of at least
claim 18 of the ’286 Patent at least by actively inducing third party customers — like
Trupanion and customers that receive similar contact center, voice and live chat services
— in the United States and this District to infringe.

40. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that for example,
per Aspect Software’s website and customer case studies, Aspect provided Trupanion
contact center, voice and live chat technology and services. Aspect touts Trupanion’s
statement that “[w]e wanted a tool that would allow us to IM chat, email, Facetime, be on
the phone, all of those things. Video from Aspect Case Study for Trupanion, at 1:38-

1:144 (http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-1). “Aspect was the company

7

that met all of our needs which was every single contact channel in one platform, ....

-18-
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Video  from  Aspect Case  Study for  Trupanion, at  2:06-2:16

(http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-1). Aspect further touts Trupanion’s

statement that “[a]s a small IT department we didn’t have to worry about the servers, the
storage, the application, Aspect handled all of that for us.” WVideo from Aspect Case

Study for Trupanion, at 2:20-2:3516 (http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-

Aspect Case Study: Trupanion

41.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Trupanion’s
website displayed live chat and voice services and technology at the top of the splash

page (www.trupanion.com) where the customer selected “Chat Now” or “Call Us.” The

foregoing is depicted below:
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” Activate Certificate | Continue Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In
t r » - c] I O Choose your reglon: Online Support
Wpanion s TR canus -

Medical insurance for your pet. Espafiol Underwritien by American Pet Insurance Company

PET INSURANCE WHY TRUPANION PET CARE POLICYHOLDERS

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Francisco

SAN FRANC'SCO' ::::alth Insurance Quote

here's another way to show love
to your dog or cat

Pet Type: ) Dog Cat
Gender: () Male Female
Breed: Please Select Breed
Pet Age: Ploase Select Age

Zip Code:

Email:

We wil email your quote to you and respact yaur privacy.

START YOUR QUOTE »

42.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that when a
customer indicated he/she would like to use this technology by clicking on the “Chat
Now” portion of Trupanion’s webpage, the customer was then asked to enter their name,

email and the department of Trupanion they would like to chat with:

trupanion.com/chat .7 ue Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In

t ru p an | | | trupanion.com/chat % CallUs ~

Medical insurance for tru panion‘ n by American Pet Insurance Company

PET INSURANCE petom Bamch m

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Frang

Trupanion Online Support g"f*‘"ﬁ' ce Quote
SAN FRAN (s . P
here's another way sk g |
to your dog or cat [T B “\? P &
Department: Select Deparimen: & :_f ll, | \. \‘\ "-lH
H I

- I‘I' \ N
o > . oy
£ _ ' |
Chat Now S = 4

1 your privacy.

Pet Insurance Resources TTpetinsurance can help protectyour beloved dog

Trupanion Policy Overview or Cat
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43.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that once the
customer provided this information and clicks on “Chat Now,” the customer entered a
live chat with Trupanion where the customer can — among other things — have questions
answered or apply for health insurance in real time via the live chat technology and

services provided by Aspect Software:

g UnifiediP Chat e Coverage | Enter Proma Code | Sign in
t Fi.J) lL,{ (1171 |1 & nups://205.140.200.204/CCPROChat /CPChatMain jsp?ChatSrvr=10.254.. m Gl e
Medical insurance fory Hello! Thank you for ing Trupanion, wa are ing you to a pet lover ready to 11 by American Pot Insurance Company
help!
| rmnoce v [RTRP— . =3
Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Frant
SAN FRAN e
here's another way
to your dog or cat b
m R yow privacy
Fetl R it Petinsurance can help protectyour beloved dog

44.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that upon
completion of the live chat — for example, when the customer clicks on “End Chat” — the
transcript of the chat remains available for the customer to review and the customer was

informed that Trupanion’s live chat technology is “Powered by Aspect Software”:
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§ Amthimim Pl mie | Pe=tin e Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In
Session Script

t rl‘_{,’ b g i Online Support
e’ W 1 ) 2 https://205.140.200.204/CCPROChat/CPChatMain.jsp?ChatSrvr=10.254.... m CallUs ~

Medical insurance for

e — p— Bn by American Pet Insurance Company
reJIDANiol
m Medical insurance for your pet J

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Frar

Hello! Thank you for contacting Trupanion, we are connecting you to a pet lover ready to

help! ice Quote
SA N F RA N Hi,‘:his is Laura. How can | help you today?

0 You 7:39:33 AM
here b Cll"loﬂ'ler WGY = | would like pet insurance, please.
Laura 74012 AM

to your dog or cat [y e
Laura T7:40:18 AM

ﬁ = Could | get your last name?
b

L™
{ _._”

Powornd by Aspact Softwars
Patinsurines Resouces roTmouraneo-Gan: neppprercweywll beloved dog

Trunanion Policy Overview ~r ~ak

The foregoing demonstrates Trupanion’s infringement of the *286 patent induced by
Aspect Software.

45.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software knew or should have known that its conduct and its continued provision of this
technology and instructions and assistance with respect to this technology would induce
others — like Trupanion and customers that receive similar contact center, voice and live
chat services — to use its software and/or hardware for providing contact center, voice and
live chat services in a manner than infringes the 286 Patent. Pragmatus is informed and
believes, and thereon alleges, that these third parties — like Trupanion — have infringed at
least claim 18 of the ’286 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by using the
infringing system/service (“Direct Infringers”). Pragmatus is informed and believes, and
thereon alleges, that Aspect Software through at least the sale and/or license of contact
center, voice and live chat software and hardware and related services as well as support

and instructions to provides related to the software and hardware and related services
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actively induced and continues to induce its customers to infringe at least claim 9 of the
’286 Patent.

46. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at least since
it knew of the 286 Patent, Aspect Software specifically intended to induce the Direct
Infringers to use the its contact center, voice and live chat software in a manner that
directly infringes at least claim 18 of the *286 Patent because, among other things, it
instructs the Direct Infringers on the use of its contact center, voice and live chat products
to use the products in an infringing manner.

47. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that as a
proximate result of Aspect Software’s inducement, the Direct Infringers directly
infringed and continue to directly infringe at least claim 18 of the *286 Patent at least by
using Aspect Software’s contact center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or
related services in connection with the Internet.

48. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at least since
Aspect Software knew of the *286 Patent, Aspect Software knew or was willfully blind to
knowing that the Direct Infringers were using Aspect Software’s contact center, voice
and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services in connection with the Internet
in a way that directly infringes at least claim 18 of the 286 Patent as a result of its
inducement of infringement.

49. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has contributorily infringed and continues to contributorily infringe at least
claim 18 of the ’286 Patent by providing, selling or offering to sell within the United

States infringing software, systems and services to third party customers like Trupanion
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that constitute a material part of the claimed invention and are not staple articles of
commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use. Pragmatus is informed and
believes, and thereon alleges, that these third parties have infringed and will continue to
infringe the ’286 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by using the infringing contact
center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services (“Direct
Infringers™).

50. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software provides a component of the patented machine and/or material or apparatus for
practicing a patented process to the Direct Infringers of at least claim 18 of the ’286
patent by providing its contact center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or
services in conjunction with instructions to Direct Infringers. For example, as set forth
above, Aspect Software provides material parts of the invention that have no substantial
non-infringing use other than to infringe the 286 patent such as the software that
“powers” the contact center, voice and live chat technology that Aspect Software
provides to its customers like Trupanion as set forth in detail above.

51. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has received written notice of its infringement from Pragmatus in at least a
letter dated March 14, 2014 from counsel for Pragmatus to Stephen Beaver, Senior Vice
President & General Counsel at Aspect Software. The letter explains that Aspect
Software is infringing the ’231 patent, the *286 patent, the 043 patent and the 314
patent. The letter further explains that Aspect Software is infringing by offering its own
live chat services as well as inducing and contributing to the infringement of its

customers by providing software and/or hardware for customers to use the accused
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services. Aspect Software also has written notice of its infringement by virtue of the
filing and service of the Complaint.

52. Pragmatus is informed and believes that at least as a result of the
foregoing notice and the filing and service of the Complaint, Aspect Software has
knowledge of its infringement of the *286 Patent.

53. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that the contact
center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services that Aspect
Software provides to its customers constitute a material part of the invention of the 286
patent at least because the invention cannot be practiced without these components as set
forth above.

54, Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that the contact
center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services that Aspect
Software provides to its customers are not staple articles of commerce, and have no
substantial non-infringing uses, at least for the reason that the accused aspects of Aspect
Software’s contact center, voice and live chat products are designed to only substantially
perform in a manner that infringes as set forth above.

55. Pragmatus has suffered damages as a result of Aspect Software's
infringement of the *286 Patent in an amount to be proven at trial.

COUNT Il
(INFRINGEMENT OF THE *043 PATENT)
56. Pragmatus incorporates by reference herein the averments set forth in

paragraphs 1 through 9 above.
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57. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has directly infringed and continues to directly infringe, literally and/or under
the doctrine of equivalents, at least claim 1 of the *043 Patent by making, using, selling,
offering for sale and providing contact center, voice and live chat services and systems
over the Internet, including Aspect’s Call Center products, services and related elements
of Aspect’s Unified IP, Communications and Collaboration, Social Customer Care,
Inbound Automatic Call Distribution (ACD), Self Service Voice Portal / IVR,
Mutlichannel Contact / Email / Web Chat, and/or Zipwire products and services.

58. Exemplary evidence of Aspect’s infringement is provided below.

59. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect

describes its call center software and systems as built on Unified IP and Zipwire

platforms. http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-software/. Aspect touts the
primary capability of its Call Center Software as providing “omni-channel connections”
that “[flrom phone calls, to text messages, to emails, to Tweets, [deliver users with] a

great experience.” http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-software/. In addition

to calling Aspect directly and/or requesting a voice contact subsequent to submission of a
form, Aspect call center product provides live chat, through a series of screen shots
demonstrating Aspect Software’s infringement of each of the patents-in-suit. Aspect
Software itself calls the accused service/system “live chat” — “Welcome to Our Live

Chat.”
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«  Call Center Software
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Connect with Aspect
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Share | Print | Chat

SCHEDULE A DEMO

Chiris Koziol talks about
delivering remarkable
customer experiences.

contact center platform. . it’s a single persan | continue to build a relationship with that
understands my business needs, und fs the system functit

- Glen Thies, Director, Central Pharmacy Services, CVS/Pharmacy

(=] Contact Center Software ¢ =

(e c

aspect!

www.aspect.com/products-and-services/contact-center-software/

Products & Services Solutions Customer Resources Partners Company Connect with Aspect

Chat with an Aspect Sales representative.

This chat serice puts you in touch with an Aspect Sales
representative who can answer your questions about our
products, services ind next peneration customer cor

solutions

Support inguiries: Technical assistance for cur products is
available through cur o if you
prefer to speak with someone live, here |s the line to the

list of su

Careers inquiries: For information about Aspect job
openings. please vsit our %
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[=] Contact Center Software © «

7 c www.aspect.com/products-and-services/contact-center-software/ o

aqnd:cg Products & Services  Solutions  CustomerResources  Parners  Company  Connect with Aspect English/US < Q

Welcome to our Live Chat

216.6.208.103 /phplive/phplive.php?d=0&btn=1337397209&cnpage=hphpX...
Share | Print | Chat

m El SCHEDULE ADEMO

Home » Products and Services » Contact C

First Name"
Welcome to our Live Chat Last Name*
Please complete the fiedds below and click Start Chat.
If all topic areas are showing as offline, pease contact us via phone or small. Ermail*
*Topic

Contact Center Sodutions - Online s

Work Phone*
“Name “Emall
Marc Belloli mbelloli@feinday.com

Company Name™
“Question
How do | get your live chat services for my -
business? Jeb Tithe

o Automatically email the chat ranseripl when Country™ »

4  session ends.

Inbound Automatic Call call c‘
Distribution [ACD) m

Systems l I p

How Can We Halp You?

Self Service Vioice Portal et A
/ IVR Systems

e o SER ' . ny,andm

L

Multi-channel Contact / - Glen Thies, Director, Central P} cy Services, CVS/Ph y

Ernail / Web Chat

et

(=] Contact Center Software & x

L c www.aspect.com/ products-and-services /contact-center-software/ W

mm Products & Services  Solutions  Customer Resources Fariners Company  Connect with Aspect English/US < Q

Welcome to our Live Chat

216.6.208.103 /phplive/phplive_ php?submit&1402947705

Home 3 Products and Services » Contact © Share | Print | Chat

How do | get your live chat services for my business?

Luils has joined the chat. SCHEDULE A DEMO
Luls {12:45:30) : Hi, Thanks for contacting Aspect Software Solutions. My name is Luis. How can | halp >
you? First Name'

Last Name"

Ernail*

Work Phone”

Company Name™

Job Title*

Inbound Automatic Call call c|

Distribution [ACD)
Systems
l I -

e iﬁ
Self Service Voice Portal - i red Field
/ IVR Systems m o R e : 3 i - m o :
understands my business needs, understands the system functionality, and can tie it together.
MISt Channe) Sonma - Glen Thies, Director, Central Pharmacy Services, €VS/Pharmacy

Email / Web Chat

» B poo100] Lus Country* v

Submit How Can We Halp You?

Unified

60.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect

Software further states “web based contact management capabilities of Aspect Unified IP
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makes it easy to provide your customers with a broad ranges of ways to contact your
agents, including voice, email, web chat, IM, SMS and social channels.”

http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-software/web-contact-management/. As

such, Aspect’s servers operate to receive data from customers, for example, indicating a
contact channel for the customers with an IP address or telephone contact number.

http://www.aspect.com/company/Contact-Us/.

61. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software also has and continues to indirectly infringe at least claim 1 of the *043 Patent
by inducing others to infringe or contributing to the infringement of others, including
customers of its contact center, voice and live chat services and systems in this judicial
district and elsewhere in the United States.

62. Specifically, Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that
Aspect Software has actively induced and continues to induce the infringement of at least
claim 1 of the '043 Patent at least by actively inducing third party customers — like
Trupanion and customers that receive similar contact center, voice and live chat services
— in the United States and this District to infringe.

63. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that for example,
per Aspect Software’s website and customer case studies, Aspect provided Trupanion
contact center, voice and live chat technology and services. Aspect touts Trupanion’s
statement that “[w]e wanted a tool that would allow us to IM chat, email, Facetime, be on
the phone, all of those things. Video from Aspect Case Study for Trupanion, at 1:38-

1:144 (http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-1). “Aspect was the company

7

that met all of our needs which was every single contact channel in one platform, ....
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Video  from  Aspect Case  Study for  Trupanion, at  2:06-2:16

(http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-1). Aspect further touts Trupanion’s

statement that “[a]s a small IT department we didn’t have to worry about the servers, the
storage, the application, Aspect handled all of that for us.” WVideo from Aspect Case

Study for Trupanion, at 2:20-2:3516 (http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-

Aspect Case Study: Trupanion

64.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Trupanion’s
website displayed live chat and voice services and technology at the top of the splash

page (www.trupanion.com) where the customer selected “Chat Now” or “Call Us.” The

foregoing is depicted below:
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” Activate Certificate | Continue Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In
t r » - c] I O Choose your reglon: Online Support
Wpanion s TR canus -

Medical insurance for your pet. Espafiol Underwritien by American Pet Insurance Company

PET INSURANCE WHY TRUPANION PET CARE POLICYHOLDERS

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Francisco

SAN FRANC'SCO' ::::alth Insurance Quote

here's another way to show love
to your dog or cat

Pet Type: ) Dog Cat
Gender: () Male Female
Breed: Please Select Breed
Pet Age: Ploase Select Age

Zip Code:

Email:

We wil email your quote to you and respact yaur privacy.

START YOUR QUOTE »

65.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that when a
customer indicated he/she would like to use this technology by clicking on the “Chat
Now” portion of Trupanion’s webpage, the customer was then asked to enter their name,

email and the department of Trupanion they would like to chat with:

trupanion.com/chat .7 ue Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In

t ru p an | | | trupanion.com/chat % CallUs ~

Medical insurance for tru panion‘ n by American Pet Insurance Company

PET INSURANCE i m

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Frang

Trupanion Online Support g"f*‘"ﬁ' ce Quote
SAN FRAN (s . P
here's another way sk g |
to your dog or cat [T B “\? P &
Department: Select Deparimen: & :_f ll, | \. \‘\ "-lH
H I

- I‘I' \ N
o > . oy
£ _ ' |
Chat Now S = 4

1 your privacy.

Pet Insurance Resources TTpetinsurance can help protectyour beloved dog

Trupanion Policy Overview or Cat
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66.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that once the
customer provided this information and clicks on “Chat Now,” the customer entered a
live chat with Trupanion where the customer can — among other things — have questions
answered or apply for health insurance in real time via the live chat technology and

services provided by Aspect Software:

g UnifiediP Chat e Coverage | Enter Proma Code | Sign in
t Fi.J) lL,{ (1171 |1 & nups://205.140.200.204/CCPROChat /CPChatMain jsp?ChatSrvr=10.254.. m Gl e
Medical insurance fory Hello! Thank you for ing Trupanion, wa are ing you to a pet lover ready to 11 by American Pot Insurance Company
help!
| rmnoce v [RTRP— . =3
Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Frant
SAN FRAN e
here's another way
to your dog or cat b
m R yow privacy
Fetl R it Petinsurance can help protectyour beloved dog

67.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that upon
completion of the live chat — for example, when the customer clicks on “End Chat” — the
transcript of the chat remains available for the customer to review and the customer was

informed that Trupanion’s live chat technology is “Powered by Aspect Software”:
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§ Amthimim Pl mie | Pe=tin e Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In
Session Script
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Laura 74012 AM

to your dog or cat [y e
Laura T7:40:18 AM

ﬁ = Could | get your last name?
b

L™
{ _._”

Powornd by Aspact Softwars
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Trunanion Policy Overview ~r ~ak

The foregoing demonstrates Trupanion’s infringement of the *043 patent induced by
Aspect Software.

68.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software knew or should have known that its conduct and its continued provision of this
technology and instructions and assistance with respect to this technology would induce
others — like Trupanion and customers that receive similar contact center, voice and live
chat services — to use its software and/or hardware for providing contact center, voice and
live chat services in a manner than infringes the 043 Patent. Pragmatus is informed and
believes, and thereon alleges, that these third parties — like Trupanion — have infringed at
least claim 1 of the 043 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. 8 271(a) by using the infringing
system/service (“Direct Infringers”). Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon
alleges, that Aspect Software through at least the sale and/or license of contact center,
voice and live chat software and hardware and related services as well as support and

instructions to provides related to the software and hardware and related services actively
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induced and continues to induce its customers to infringe at least claim 1 of the 043
Patent.

69. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at least since
it knew of the 043 Patent, Aspect Software specifically intended to induce the Direct
Infringers to use the its contact center, voice and live chat software in a manner that
directly infringes at least claim 1 of the '043 Patent because, among other things, it
instructs the Direct Infringers on the use of its contact center, voice and live chat products
to use the products in an infringing manner.

70. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that as a
proximate result of Aspect Software’s inducement, the Direct Infringers directly
infringed and continue to directly infringe at least claim 1 of the *043 Patent at least by
using Aspect Software’s contact center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or
related services in connection with the Internet.

71. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at least since
Aspect Software knew of the *043 Patent, Aspect Software knew or was willfully blind to
knowing that the Direct Infringers were using Aspect Software’s contact center, voice
and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services in connection with the Internet
in a way that directly infringes at least claim 1 of the ’043 Patent as a result of its
inducement of infringement.

72. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has contributorily infringed and continues to contributorily infringe at least
claim 1 of the *043 Patent by providing, selling or offering to sell within the United

States infringing software, systems and services to third party customers like Trupanion
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that constitute a material part of the claimed invention and are not staple articles of
commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use. Pragmatus is informed and
believes, and thereon alleges, that these third parties have infringed and will continue to
infringe the *043 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by using the infringing contact
center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services (“Direct
Infringers™).

73. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software provides a component of the patented machine and/or material or apparatus for
practicing a patented process to the Direct Infringers of at least claim 1 of the 043 patent
by providing its contact center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or services in
conjunction with instructions to Direct Infringers. For example, as set forth above,
Aspect Software provides material parts of the invention that have no substantial non-
infringing use other than to infringe the *043 patent such as the software that “powers”
the contact center, voice and live chat technology that Aspect Software provides to its
customers like Trupanion as set forth in detail above.

74, Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has received written notice of its infringement from Pragmatus in at least a
letter dated March 14, 2014 from counsel for Pragmatus to Stephen Beaver, Senior Vice
President & General Counsel at Aspect Software. The letter explains that Aspect
Software is infringing the ’231 patent, the *286 patent, the 043 patent and the 314
patent. The letter further explains that Aspect Software is infringing by offering its own
live chat services as well as inducing and contributing to the infringement of its

customers by providing software and/or hardware for customers to use the accused
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services. Aspect Software also has written notice of its infringement by virtue of the
filing and service of the Complaint.

75. Pragmatus is informed and believes that at least as a result of the
foregoing notice and the filing and service of the Complaint, Aspect Software has
knowledge of its infringement of the *043 Patent.

76. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that the contact
center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services that Aspect
Software provides to its customers constitute a material part of the invention of the 043
patent at least because the invention cannot be practiced without these components as set
forth above.

77, Pragmatus is informed and believes that the contact center, voice and live
chat software, hardware, and/or related services that Aspect Software provides to its
customers are not staple articles of commerce, and have no substantial non-infringing
uses, at least for the reason that the accused aspects of Aspect Software’s contact center,
voice and live chat products are designed to only substantially perform in a manner that
infringes as set forth above.

78. Pragmatus has suffered damages as a result of Aspect Software's
infringement of the *043 Patent in an amount to be proven at trial.

COUNT IV
(INFRINGEMENT OF THE ’314 PATENT)
79. Pragmatus incorporates by reference herein the averments set forth in

paragraphs 1 through 9 above.
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80. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has directly infringed and continues to directly infringe, literally and/or under
the doctrine of equivalents, at least claim 1 of the *314 Patent by making, using, selling,
offering for sale and providing contact center, voice and live chat services and systems
over the Internet, including Aspect’s Call Center products, services and related elements
of Aspect’s Unified IP, Communications and Collaboration, Social Customer Care,
Inbound Automatic Call Distribution (ACD), Self Service Voice Portal / IVR,
Mutlichannel Contact / Email / Web Chat, and/or Zipwire products and services.

81. Exemplary evidence of Aspect’s infringement is provided below.

82. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect

Software describes its call center software and systems as built on Unified IP and Zipwire

platforms. http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-software/. Aspect touts the
primary capability of its Call Center Software as providing “omni-channel connections”
that “[flrom phone calls, to text messages, to emails, to Tweets, [deliver users with] a

great experience.” http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-software/. In addition

to calling Aspect directly and/or requesting a voice contact subsequent to submission of a
form, Aspect call center product provides live chat, through a series of screen shots
demonstrating Aspect Software’s infringement of each of the patents-in-suit. Aspect
Software itself calls the accused service/system “live chat” — “Welcome to Our Live

Chat.”

-37-



Case 1:14-cv-00026-RGA Document 52 Filed 01/12/15

I Contact Center Software ¢ x

- c

www.aspect.com/products-and-services/contact-center-software/
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Home » Products and Services » Contact Center

«  Call Center Software

“Aspect has a complete view of everything I'm trying to impl Itsa lete, ¢ {i

Connect with Aspect
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Share | Print | Chat

SCHEDULE A DEMO

Chiris Koziol talks about
delivering remarkable
customer experiences.

contact center platform. . it’s a single persan | continue to build a relationship with that
understands my business needs, und fs the system functit

- Glen Thies, Director, Central Pharmacy Services, CVS/Pharmacy

(=] Contact Center Software ¢ =

(e c

aspect!

www.aspect.com/products-and-services/contact-center-software/

Products & Services Solutions Customer Resources Partners Company Connect with Aspect

Chat with an Aspect Sales representative.

This chat serice puts you in touch with an Aspect Sales
representative who can answer your questions about our
products, services ind next peneration customer cor

solutions

Support inguiries: Technical assistance for cur products is
available through cur o if you
prefer to speak with someone live, here |s the line to the

list of su

Careers inquiries: For information about Aspect job
openings. please vsit our %
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[=] Contact Center Software © «
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Welcome to our Live Chat

216.6.208.103 /phplive/phplive.php?d=0&btn=1337397209&cnpage=hphpX...
Share | Print | Chat

m El SCHEDULE ADEMO

Home » Products and Services » Contact C

First Name"
Welcome to our Live Chat Last Name*
Please complete the fiedds below and click Start Chat.
If all topic areas are showing as offline, pease contact us via phone or small. Ermail*
*Topic

Contact Center Sodutions - Online s

Work Phone*
“Name “Emall
Marc Belloli mbelloli@feinday.com

Company Name™
“Question
How do | get your live chat services for my -
business? Jeb Tithe

o Automatically email the chat ranseripl when Country™ »
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Inbound Automatic Call call c‘
Distribution [ACD) m

Systems l I p

How Can We Halp You?

Self Service Vioice Portal et A
/ IVR Systems

e o SER ' . ny,andm

L

Multi-channel Contact / - Glen Thies, Director, Central P} cy Services, CVS/Ph y

Ernail / Web Chat
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(=] Contact Center Software & x
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mm Products & Services  Solutions  Customer Resources Fariners Company  Connect with Aspect English/US < Q

Welcome to our Live Chat

216.6.208.103 /phplive/phplive_ php?submit&1402947705

Home 3 Products and Services » Contact © Share | Print | Chat

How do | get your live chat services for my business?

Luils has joined the chat. SCHEDULE A DEMO
Luls {12:45:30) : Hi, Thanks for contacting Aspect Software Solutions. My name is Luis. How can | halp >
you? First Name'

Last Name"

Ernail*

Work Phone”

Company Name™

Job Title*

Inbound Automatic Call call c|

Distribution [ACD)
Systems
l I -

e iﬁ
Self Service Voice Portal - i red Field
/ IVR Systems m o R e : 3 i - m o :
understands my business needs, understands the system functionality, and can tie it together.
MISt Channe) Sonma - Glen Thies, Director, Central Pharmacy Services, €VS/Pharmacy

Email / Web Chat

» B poo100] Lus Country* v

Submit How Can We Halp You?

Unified

83.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect

Sofware further states “web based contact management capabilities of Aspect Unified IP
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makes it easy to provide your customers with a broad ranges of ways to contact your
agents, including voice, email, web chat, IM, SMS and social channels.”

http://www.aspect.com/products/contact-center-software/web-contact-management/. As

such, Aspect’s servers operate to receive data from customers, for example, indicating a
contact channel for the customers with an IP address or telephone contact number.

http://www.aspect.com/company/Contact-Us/.

84. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software also has and continues to indirectly infringe at least claim 1 of the *314 Patent
by inducing others to infringe or contributing to the infringement of others, including
customers of its contact center, voice and live chat services and systems in this judicial
district and elsewhere in the United States.

8b. Specifically, Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that
Aspect Software has actively induced and continues to induce the infringement of at least
claim 1 of the ’314 Patent at least by actively inducing third party customers — like
Trupanion and customers that receive similar contact center, voice and live chat services
— in the United States and this District to infringe.

86. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that for example,
per Aspect Software’s website and customer case studies, Aspect provided Trupanion
contact center, voice and live chat technology and services. Aspect touts Trupanion’s
statement that “[w]e wanted a tool that would allow us to IM chat, email, Facetime, be on
the phone, all of those things. Video from Aspect Case Study for Trupanion, at 1:38-

1:144 (http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-1). “Aspect was the company

7

that met all of our needs which was every single contact channel in one platform, ....
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Video  from  Aspect Case  Study for  Trupanion, at  2:06-2:16

(http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-1). Aspect further touts Trupanion’s

statement that “[a]s a small IT department we didn’t have to worry about the servers, the
storage, the application, Aspect handled all of that for us.” WVideo from Aspect Case

Study for Trupanion, at 2:20-2:3516 (http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ucjUgDM7W-

Aspect Case Study: Trupanion

87.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Trupanion’s
website displayed live chat and voice services and technology at the top of the splash

page (www.trupanion.com) where the customer selected “Chat Now” or “Call Us.” The

foregoing is depicted below:
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” Activate Certificate | Continue Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In
t r » - c] I O Choose your reglon: Online Support
Wpanion s TR canus -

Medical insurance for your pet. Espafiol Underwritien by American Pet Insurance Company

PET INSURANCE WHY TRUPANION PET CARE POLICYHOLDERS

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Francisco

SAN FRANC'SCO' ::::alth Insurance Quote

here's another way to show love
to your dog or cat

Pet Type: ) Dog Cat
Gender: () Male Female
Breed: Please Select Breed
Pet Age: Ploase Select Age

Zip Code:

Email:

We wil email your quote to you and respact yaur privacy.

START YOUR QUOTE »

88.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that when a
customer indicated he/she would like to use this technology by clicking on the “Chat
Now” portion of Trupanion’s webpage, the customer was then asked to enter their name,

email and the department of Trupanion they would like to chat with:

trupanion.com/chat .7 ue Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In

t ru p an | | | trupanion.com/chat % CallUs ~

Medical insurance for tru panion‘ n by American Pet Insurance Company

PET INSURANCE petom Bamch m

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Frang

Trupanion Online Support g"f*‘"ﬁ' ce Quote
SAN FRAN (s . P
here's another way sk g |
to your dog or cat [T B “\? P &
Department: Select Deparimen: & :_f ll, | \. \‘\ "-lH
H I

- I‘I' \ N
o > . oy
£ _ ' |
Chat Now S = 4

1 your privacy.

Pet Insurance Resources TTpetinsurance can help protectyour beloved dog

Trupanion Policy Overview or Cat
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89.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that once the
customer provided this information and clicks on “Chat Now,” the customer entered a
live chat with Trupanion where the customer can — among other things — have questions
answered or apply for health insurance in real time via the live chat technology and

services provided by Aspect Software:

UnifiedIP Chat e Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign in

ot o et - o Online Support
t re) |L JOLT 111 & nips://205.140.200.204/CCPROChzt/CPChatMain.jsp?ChatSrvr=10.254.. m CallUs ~

Medic

al insurance fory . .., Thank you for ing Trupanion, we are ing you to a pet lover ready to 1 by American Pat Insurance Company

help!
m Hi, this is Laura. How can | help you today? j

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Frant

SAN FRAN e

here's another way
to your dog or cat

. Resources Petinsurance can help protectyour beloved dog

90.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that upon
completion of the live chat — for example, when the customer clicks on “End Chat” — the
transcript of the chat remains available for the customer to review and the customer was

informed that Trupanion’s live chat technology is “Powered by Aspect Software”:
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§ Amthimim Pl mie | Pe=tin e Coverage | Enter Promo Code | Sign In
Session Script

t rl‘_{,’ b g i Online Support
e’ W 1 ) 2 https://205.140.200.204/CCPROChat/CPChatMain.jsp?ChatSrvr=10.254.... m CallUs ~

Medical insurance for

e — p— Bn by American Pet Insurance Company
reJIDANiol
m Medical insurance for your pet J

Trupanion > Pet Insurance > San Frar

Hello! Thank you for contacting Trupanion, we are connecting you to a pet lover ready to

help! ice Quote
SA N F RA N Hi,‘:his is Laura. How can | help you today?

0 You 7:39:33 AM
here b Cll"loﬂ'ler WGY = | would like pet insurance, please.
Laura 74012 AM

to your dog or cat [y e
Laura T7:40:18 AM

ﬁ = Could | get your last name?
b

L™
{ _._”

Powornd by Aspact Softwars
Patinsurines Resouces roTmouraneo-Gan: neppprercweywll beloved dog

Trunanion Policy Overview ~r ~ak

The foregoing demonstrates Trupanion’s infringement of the ’314 patent induced by
Aspect Software.

91.  Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software knew or should have known that its conduct and its continued provision of this
technology and instructions and assistance with respect to this technology would induce
others — like Trupanion and customers that receive similar contact center, voice and live
chat services — to use its software and/or hardware for providing contact center, voice and
live chat services in a manner than infringes the 231 Patent. Pragmatus is informed and
believes, and thereon alleges, that these third parties — like Trupanion — have infringed at
least claim 9 of the *231 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. 8 271(a) by using the infringing
system/service (“Direct Infringers”). Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon
alleges, that Aspect Software through at least the sale and/or license of contact center,
voice and live chat software and hardware and related services as well as support and

instructions to provides related to the software and hardware and related services actively
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induced and continues to induce its customers to infringe at least claim 1 of the *314
Patent.

92. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at least since
it knew of the 231 Patent, Aspect Software specifically intended to induce the Direct
Infringers to use the its contact center, voice and live chat software in a manner that
directly infringes at least claim 1 of the *314 Patent because, among other things, it
instructs the Direct Infringers on the use of its contact center, voice and live chat products
to use the products in an infringing manner.

93. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that as a
proximate result of Aspect Software’s inducement, the Direct Infringers directly
infringed and continue to directly infringe at least claim 1 of the *314 Patent at least by
using Aspect Software’s contact center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or
related services in connection with the Internet.

94, Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at least since
Aspect Software knew of the *314 Patent, Aspect Software knew or was willfully blind to
knowing that the Direct Infringers were using Aspect Software’s contact center, voice
and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services in connection with the Internet
in a way that directly infringes at least claim 1 of the *314 Patent as a result of its
inducement of infringement.

95. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has contributorily infringed and continues to contributorily infringe at least
claim 1 of the ’314 Patent by providing, selling or offering to sell within the United

States infringing software, systems and services to third party customers like Trupanion
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that constitute a material part of the claimed invention and are not staple articles of
commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use. Pragmatus is informed and
believes, and thereon alleges, that these third parties have infringed and will continue
infringe the ’314 Patent in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by using the infringing contact
center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services (“Direct
Infringers™).

96. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software provides a component of the patented machine and/or material or apparatus for
practicing a patented process to the Direct Infringers of at least claim 1 of the *314 patent
by providing its contact center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or services in
conjunction with instructions to Direct Infringers. For example, as set forth above,
Aspect Software provides material parts of the invention that have no substantial non-
infringing use other than to infringe the ’314 patent such as the software that “powers”
the contact center, voice and live chat technology that Aspect Software provides to its
customers like Trupanion as set forth in detail above.

97. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that Aspect
Software has received written notice of its infringement from Pragmatus in at least a
letter dated March 14, 2014 from counsel for Pragmatus to Stephen Beaver, Senior Vice
President & General Counsel at Aspect Software. The letter explains that Aspect
Software is infringing the ’231 patent, the *286 patent, the 043 patent and the 314
patent. The letter further explains that Aspect Software is infringing by offering its own
live chat services as well as inducing and contributing to the infringement of its

customers by providing software and/or hardware for customers to use the accused
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services. Aspect Software also has written notice of its infringement by virtue of the
filing and service of the Complaint.

98. Pragmatus is informed and believes that at least as a result of the
foregoing notice and the filing and service of the Complaint, Aspect Software has
knowledge of its infringement of the *314 Patent.

99. Pragmatus is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that the contact
center, voice and live chat software, hardware, and/or related services that Aspect
Software provides to its customers constitute a material part of the invention of the *314
patent at least because the invention cannot be practiced without these components as set
forth above.

100. Pragmatus is informed and believes that the contact center, voice and live
chat software, hardware, and/or related services that Aspect Software provides to its
customers are not staple articles of commerce, and have no substantial non-infringing
uses, at least for the reason that the accused aspects of Aspect Software’s contact center,
voice and live chat products are designed to only substantially perform in a manner that
infringes as set forth above.

101. Pragmatus has suffered damages as a result of Aspect Software's

infringement of the *314 Patent in an amount to be proven at trial.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Pragmatus respectfully requests the following relief:
a. A judgment that Aspect Software has infringed one or more claims

of United States Patent Nos. 6,311,231, 6,668,286, 7,159,043 and 8,438,314;
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b. A judgment that United States Patent Nos. 6,311,231, 6,668,286,
7,159,043 and 8,438,314 are valid and enforceable;

C. Pragmatus be awarded damages adequate to compensate
Pragmatus for Aspect Software’s infringement of United States Patent Nos. 6,311,231,
6,668,286, 7,159,043 and 8,438,314 up until the date such judgment is entered, including
prejudgment and post-judgment interest, costs, and disbursements as justified under 35
U.S.C. § 284 and, if necessary adequately to compensate Pragmatus for Aspect
Software’s infringement, an accounting;

d. A judgment that Pragmatus be awarded attorneys’ fees, costs, and
expenses incurred in prosecuting this action;

e. An injunction preventing Aspect Software’s infringement of
United States Patent Nos. 6,311,231, 6,668,286, 7,159,043 and 8,438,314, and

f. A judgment that Pragmatus be awarded such further relief at law or
in equity as the Court deems just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Pragmatus hereby demands trial by jury on all claims and issues so triable.

Dated: January 12, 2015 Respectfully submitted,

FARNAN LLP

/s/ Brian E. Farnan

Brian E. Farnan (Bar No. 4089)
919 North Market Street

12" Floor

Wilmington, DE 19801

(302) 777-0300

(302) 777-0301
bfarnan@farnanlaw.com

-48-



Case 1:14-cv-00026-RGA Document 52 Filed 01/12/15 Page 49 of 49 PagelD #: 1008

Margaret Elizabeth Day (admitted pro hac
vice)

lan N. Feinberg (admitted pro hac vice)
David L. Alberti (admitted pro hac vice)
Clayton Thompson (admitted pro hac vice)
Marc C. Belloli (admitted pro hac vice)
Sal Lim (admitted pro hac vice)

Yakov Zolotorev (admitted pro hac vice)
FEINBERG DAY ALBERTI &
THOMPSON LLP

1600 El Camino Real, Suite 280

Menlo Park, CA 94025

Telephone: (650) 618.4360

Facsimile: (650) 618.4368
eday@feinday.com
ifeinberg@feinday.com
dalberti@feinday.com
cthompson@feinday.com
mbelloli@feinday.com
slim@feinday.com
yzolotorev@feinday.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff Pragmatus Telecom

LLC

-49-



